
MINUTES 

Glen Ellyn Architectural Appearance Commission 

Wednesday, May 14, 2025 at 7:00 PM 

Glen Ellyn Civic Center 

Galligan Board Room 

535 Duane Street, Glen Ellyn, IL 60137 

 

A. Call to Order and Roll Call 

Chairperson Jacobson called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM and explained the Architectural Appearance Commission’s function 

and procedures as an advisory body. 

  

Roll was called. 

 

Present: Chairperson Jacobson and Commissioners Albrecht, Goranov, Mees, Schlembach, and Smith 

Absent: Commissioner Rahn 

 

Also in attendance: Anabel Pederson, Associate Planner, and Adriana Ohl Zamora, Recording Secretary. 

 

B. Approval of the Minutes 

 

Commissioner Smith made a motion to approve the draft minutes of the March 12, 2025 meeting. Commissioner Goranov 

seconded the motion. The motion passed by voice vote. 

 

C. Old Business 

  

None to report. 

 

D. New Business 

1. 515 Crescent Blvd. - Exterior Appearance Review for Walk-Up Automated Teller Machine 

 

Staff Presentation 

 

Sworn In, Anabel Pederson, Associate Planner presented on 515 Crescent Blvd, explained that although this is a new application, 

the item has been seen previously; it is for an exterior faced alteration for a proposed walk up ATM on the north facing section of 

the building.  Located on corner of Crescent Boulevard and North Main Street, zoned C5A with a square footage of 5,227.22, 

currently special use permitted real estate office that was granted in 2022.  

 

Associate Planner Pederson moved on to explain that this project previously came before the Commission as a separate 

application, and it was denied by Village Board on January 13, 2025. The design which was rejected includes the following: 

 

• Removal of right most window to be replaced with: 

• NCR SelfServ 64 Automated Teller Machine 

• Matching Brick Fill-In 

• Straight Hem Black Awning 

• Aluminum Sconce, Black Finish 

 

 

The new proposed design was presented to Commissioners, which includes the following: 

 

• Removal of right most window to be replaced with: 

• NCR SelfServ 64 Automated Teller Machine 

• Side Panel Windows 

• Matching Brick Fill-In 

• Straight Hem Black Awning 

• Aluminum Sconce, Black Finish 

 

 

Associate Planner Pederson showed a slide of the building’s current condition to Commissioners. Proposed materials, lighting 

and the cutsheet of ATM was also shown. Commission action is to consider the proposed exterior appearance and provide a 

recommendation to the Village Board of Trustees approval, approval with conditions, or denial. 

 

Commissioner Mees asked if the Village Trustees had voted on this design and rejected it. 



Associate Planner Pederson clarified that per the Commission’s recommendation for denial on November 13, 2024, the 

previously proposed design was denied via ordinance. That design included the brick infill, the wood trim, and awning. Currently 

there is nothing in the code that prevents an applicant from re-applying, so the client and Petitioner chose to modify the petition 

based on comments from the Commission on September 11, 2024, and reappear before the commission for consideration. 

 

Commissioner Mees asked if the Trustees had comments as to why they rejected it so the Commission can make sure that they 

address all concerns that were previously reviewed and were on the same page as the Trustees. 

 

Associate Planner Pederson said that the previous recommendation for denial from this Commission was unanimous and was 

therefore put on the consent agenda. The Trustees did not pull the item from the consent agenda to discuss separately, and it was 

passed on the Commission’s recommendation. 

 

The Petitioner, Taylor Hall with PM Design on behalf of US Bank, presented the design. He stated that they are revisiting the 

project based on the comments from the September 11, 2024, review that he was unable to attend, and the project was not 

properly represented at that time.  

 

The Petitioner said they had taken feedback from the notes to more adequately conform with the façade of building. He also 

stated that US Bank always used the highest technology and standards. With those regards, they have been evaluating this 

location in particular for quite a while and have been researching since 2022. He stated that the bank likes the location, as it is not 

directly on the main road but is still easy to identify. He stated that they are familiar with the noise and other lighting ordinances 

as well as appearance ordinances, and it’s in their interest to align with the community and the Commission’s requirements. 

 

The Petitioner stated that they are presenting a proposed ATM and façade at the location which is currently zoned C5A. They are 

proposing a new design in alignment with remarks and rebuttals that were made and found in the notes and meeting minutes. The 

design is proposing removal of the window for the ATM kiosk, some level of demolition and infill at the lower portion for the 

work that be necessary to set ATM kiosk, custom fabricated window wood frame unit that matches the current architecture, and 

the colonial style brick molding as well as a black awning for weather protection for customers.  

 

It was discussed whether it would be necessary to provide that canopy, Mr. Hall stated that he would have to defer to the 

Commission’s recommendation there and make note accordingly. He showed existing conditions photos taken during wintertime, 

along with the elevation and the proposed flanking custom windows. Mr. Hall also showed an updated plan sheet indicating the 

limited scope removal extraction of window unit in its entirety, if possible, for reclamation and reuse, infill with the atm and new 

custom units, the fabric canopy for the canopy and the brick match. Petitioner stated that brick match was not the correct image 

with the closer match which was recommended by local mason after visiting site. Provided photometric to ensure security at the 

site. 

 

Commissioner Goranov stated that it appeared the Petitioner had disregarded the alcove design recommendation of the 

Commission, and that it looks worse than the previously presented option. He inquired as to why the Petitioner did not present 

the alcove option that was given to them last time.  

 

Chairperson Jacobson noted that it appeared they explored the option. 

 

Mr. Hall stated that they did work administratively with the jurisdiction regarding the alcove design, it was found to be in non-

compliance with accessibility and the Bank did not want to pursue the design.  

 

Commissioner Goranov asked to clarify which jurisdiction. Petitioner Hall stated that it was discussed with the Planning 

Department. Commissioner Goranov inquired as to why it is not in compliance, he stated it seemed like it would comply with all 

the ADA requirements. The Petitioner stated that they surveyed and found that it does not; in fact, currently it does not meet 

forward approach compliance. 

 

Commissioner Schlembach asked for an elaboration on the non-compliance.  

 

Petitioner Taylor Hall stated that currently that alcove has a grade which is 6% from the curb line/sidewalk line up to the 

threshold of the door. For a forward approach it must be at 5%, so it is already out of compliance. They would also have to meet 

cross slope so it would have to be 2% in both directions. In fact, to do that they would have to form a curb as well as install a 

railing and the bank was not at all in favor of this design. 

 

Commissioner Schlembach clarified that it is the exterior sidewalk approach that is in current non-compliance. Petitioner Hall 

replied that no, it is within the property, building line. 

 

Commissioner Goranov requested a picture to be pulled up of the area. 

 



Chairperson Jacobson remarked that it looks like by the time they would install a curb and raised the alcove piece up they would 

be conflicting with the door. 

 

Commissioner Goranov stated that would not be required because the ATM would be close to the sidewalk. 

 

Chairperson Jacobson commented that they would have to pour that concrete to make the cross slope so a person would not be 

sitting sideways if they were in a wheelchair and then they would be restricting the door. 

 

Commissioner Goranov said that this could easily be done, while Chairperson Jacobson stated she didn’t think they could do it 

from the front door straight to the sidewalk. He stated that all they would have to do is the little rectangle by the door which can 

be altered very easily. He remarked that the Village is building a whole new train station because of the ADA requirements, all 

this would require is to change the rectangle. 

 

Commissioner Mees pointed out that the Petitioner would need to change the concrete leading up to the door, and slope up so that 

the highest point by the door is also the highest point by the ATM. 

 

Chairperson Jacobson concurred and said that it’s within four feet and the whole piece slopes so it’s not going to be possible to 

create the slope without creating a curb because they have two existing points; the existing sidewalk and the existing threshold of 

the door. If the Petitioner was building a new building, then they could easily flatten it out but it is more difficult when you have 

two existing conditions.  

 

Commissioner Goranov inquired about there being a hall upon entry of the building and asked about the floor elevation and the 

level of the sidewalk.  

 

Commissioner Albrecht asked Commissioner Goranov if his idea was that if this portion were fixed, it would put into compliance 

the entrance to the building, as well as to the ATM and the Petitioner could solve both those situations. 

 

Commissioner Mees asked if he meant the Petitioner would dig out the entire rectangle and then what would happen at the 

threshold of the door. 

 

Commissioner Goranov stated that maybe it would require a whole new door, but he thinks it is worth it to keep the historic 

elevation. In the new design, the building looks totally different in terms of historic value. 

 

Chairperson Jacobson asked if there were comments from any other Commissioners. 

 

Commissioner Mees said that she thinks that the proposed design now takes into account what was asked for in September, the 

windows especially. Her only comment would be that above the ATM is brick. She would ask for the area above the ATM to be 

either another faux window or white panel and not red brick. Petitioner Hall asked if this meant to shorten window heights and/or 

add trim all the way across. Commissioner Mees clarified that she didn’t mean shorten the window height, she would keep the 

height the same to match the other windows on the building. Instead, having the area above the ATM be a window to match the 

window size on the other side instead of having it be brick. 

 

Commissioner Goranov agreed that an upside-down U-shaped window around ATM would be better. 

 

Commissioner Albrecht said that there have been some good comments, but she feels like with the different entities involved in 

these discussions, the design is almost one step behind. She is not in disagreement with some of the changes that have been 

mentioned, like the windows, but they are still looking at a historic building with the opportunity to not change anything. Perhaps 

if the Petitioner’s client could come back and smooth out the entrance, it would give us the opportunity to get the ATM in 

without changing the elevation and solve the problem of a non-compliant entrance. 

 

Commissioner Schlembach said that he was thinking about downtown where sidewalk slabs have been changed in order to help 

storeowners meet the grade and he feels that even if they needed to encroach upon the Village sidewalk, as long as the 

encroachment is also in compliance, that solution could be implemented if there was an element of good faith wanting to 

implement it. 

 

Chairperson Jacobson stated that unfortunately, the Village just re-did the sidewalks last summer. 

 

Commissioner Goranov asked who the architect of this ATM project was. Mr. Hall stated that he was the Project Manager with 

PM Design, the architect of record. Commissioner Goranov asked to clarify that he is not the architect and inquired as to why the 

architect was not present to answer questions. Petitioner Taylor Hall stated that their goal was to take another look at the façade 

since the alcove design is not feasible. They sent out a surveyor and found the non-compliant area and discussed the options 



including the modification of the interior of the building to achieve the drop and gradually accommodate that slope. The bank is 

not willing to submit the alcove as their preferred design as it is not in their best interest. 

 

Commissioner Goranov added that the Petitioner also advised them that there is a non-conformance. Petitioner Taylor Hall 

agreed that it is not in compliance. 

 

Commissioner Schlembach added that was the case unless they encroached on the village sidewalk. Petitioner Taylor Hall agreed 

that element could make a difference. 

 

Commissioner Schlembach said that other businesses down the street have had the Village sidewalk changed. 

 

Commissioner Smith said that her preference is to try to accommodate the alcove design and that she is concerned that this 

proposed design is not in line with what is existing. She agrees that continuing the windows on the top might help but is 

concerned about the infill of the brick since matching is going to be difficult. She mentions that her preference is for minimizing 

elements that are not part of the historic structure. 

 

Commissioner Goranov says that the canopy makes the facade look like a different building that is imbedded into the building.  

 

Commissioner Smith asked if the canopy is one of the bank’s requirements. 

 

Petitioner Taylor Hall responded that no, he believes it was something discussed in the design process to protect the client from 

the elements. 

 

Commissioner Goranov said that could be avoided by putting the ATM in the alcove as it is already covered. 

 

Commissioner Jacobson reiterated that the alcove design would be something that would require the applicant to go back to the 

Village and ask if it would be possible to adjust the sidewalk, and it would improve the accessibility for the rest of the building 

also.  

 

Commissioner Goranov said it would also be an opportunity to save a historic building, one of the few left to be saved. 

 

Chairperson Jacobson stated that this is an improvement over the last design in terms of the windows, and she thinks the alcove is 

a nicer way to keep the building façade looking the same, it solves the problem of the awning. She agreed that it will not work the 

way it is right now because of the matter of having to redo the concrete entrance to the building. 

Commissioner Goranov made the motion:  

After conducting a public meeting and deliberating on the request of the petitioner, Taylor Hall on behalf of PM Design and US 

Bank, for approval of an exterior appearance review for 515 Crescent Boulevard in the C5A Zoning District, the Architectural 

Appearance Commission recommends denial of this request based on the following findings of fact: 

 

1. The proposal architectural style is not preserving the historic appearance of the building 

2. There is an alternative option to be explored which will preserve exterior of the building and overall will improve the 

functioning of the entire building and functioning of the ATM machine 

Commissioner Albrecht seconded the motion. The motion passed roll call with all Commissioners present voting “Yes”. 

Chairperson Jacobson suggested to the Petitioner working with the Village Engineer to see what could be done about the grading 

and the sidewalk.  

Commissioner Albrecht said that she thinks it will make a nice space for the ATM and help keep the building in historic character 

and have an accessible entrance to the building. 

Petitioner Taylor Hall stated that he will relay all the comments to the bank and thanked the Commission. 

 

E. Chairman’s Report 

 

Nothing to report 

 



F. Trustee Liaison Report 

 

Nothing to report 

 

 

G. Staff Report 

 

Anabel Pederson, Associate Planner presented the following updates from Staff: 

 

1. New Village Trustees and Village President sworn in May 12, 2025. There will be a new Trustee Liaison for the 

Commission, and they will hopefully be present next meeting. 

2. Metra and Union Pacific are still in negotiations regarding the Metra Station Project. 

3. 534 Duane Street, Fuchsia Boutique exterior appearance was approved by Village Board on April 14, 2025. Building 

has commenced. 

4. The new Village fee schedule in effect that took effect April 25, 2005, as well as the new permitting software; the staff 

side as well as customer facing portal so applicants will now submit and track comments and approvals online. 

 

Commissioner Albrecht and Commissioner Goranov asked when the Commission would see the Metra Station Project 

again. 

 

Commissioner Mees stated that she believes they saw it and approved it and so will not be seeing it again. 

 

Associate Planner Pederson confirmed that the Commission had already approved the exterior appearance review. 

 

Commissioner Schlembach asked how many funding agencies are involved in the project and asked about future funding 

outlook and the negotiations involved. 

 

Associate Planner Pederson said that she believes recent negotiations in particular are about the rental or lease agreement 

with Metra and Union Pacific. From what she can tell, the Village Engineer has stated that there is still funding going on and 

money being allocated to the projects, but they are monitoring the funding situation as things develop. However, projects 

this far along in the planning phase still should have funding. 

 

Commissioner Smith said that she noticed a store front on Main Street being painted a color that she doesn’t believe the 

Commission would generally approve of and asked about guidelines for tenants regarding exterior painting. 

 

Associate Planner Pederson stated that the Commission would only see things that are significant alterations, and that 

painting a building would not require a permit or be considered a significant alteration. She mentioned the Architectural 

Appearance Guidelines that outline earth tones as the advised colors for downtown. 

 

Commissioner Schlembach added that, on historical building paint is a temporary material because ultimately it can be 

repainted. 

 

I. Adjournment 

 

Member Albrecht made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Member Goranov seconded the motion and the motion passed 

by voice vote at 7:40pm 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Adriana Ohl-Zamora                              

Recording Secretary 


